Before the

Administrative Hearing Commission

State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
)

TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,
)



)



Petitioner,
)




)


vs.

)

No.11-0325MC



)

ONE STOP SHOP ENTERPRISES, LLC,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


One Stop Shop Enterprises, LLC (“One Stop Shop”) violated state and federal laws on three occasions.  We grant the motion for summary decision of the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“MHTC”).
Procedure


The MHTC filed a complaint on February 18, 2011.  One Stop Shop was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of hearing by certified mail.  The domestic return receipt (“green card”) was signed but not dated, and was returned to us May 10, 2011.  One Stop Shop filed no answer to the complaint.  


On July 27, 2011, the MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  We gave One Stop Shop until August 12, 2011, to respond to the motion, but it did not respond.  
Findings of Fact
1. One Stop Shop is a limited liability company with a principal place of business at 1195 Dunn Road, St. Louis, Missouri, 63138.
2. At all relevant times, One Stop Shop owned a 2003 Freightliner truck (“2003 Freightliner”) with a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of 25,500 pounds.
3. At all relevant times, One Stop Shop owned a 2002 International truck (“2002 International”) with a gross vehicle weight rating (“GVWR”) of 25,500 pounds.

4. On February 17, 2010, One Stop Shop used its employee Nicholas Leasure to operate the 2002 International in intrastate commerce while transporting property (specifically, a scrap car) within St. Louis, Missouri.  At that time, One Stop Shop had not inspected or caused to have inspected the 2002 International at least once within the preceding twelve months.

5. On June 15, 2010, One Stop Shop used Leasure to operate the 2003 Freightliner in intrastate commerce while transporting property (specifically, a scrap car) on public highways within St. Louis, Missouri.  At that time, One Stop Shop:
a.
failed to maintain a medical examiner’s certificate in Leisure’s qualification file;

b.
failed to require Leasure to record his duty status; and

c.
had not inspected, or caused to have inspected, the 2003 Freightliner at least once within the preceding twelve  months.

6. On July 13, 2010, One Stop Shop’s manager, Gene Hawkins, signed two “Notices of Violations,” which list the violations set out in paragraphs 4 and 5 above.  Each notice recites:

I voluntarily make this admission to an investigator of the MoDOT/Motor Carrier Services Division.  No threats or promises, of any kind, have been made to me.  This is in regards to the Compliance Review just completed, violations cited, & corrective action given to me.  I acknowledge that the information the Carrier provided to this Investigator is accurate, that the Carrier admits to 
committing violations of the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations and/or Revised Statutes of Missouri noted above, and the trip date(s) listed are accurate and were conducted in a commercial motor vehicle on a public roadway and in furtherance of a commercial enterprise.  I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United States, and State of Missouri, that all of the foregoing is true and correct and is an accurate recitation of the facts. I also understand and have been made aware that penalties may result from the violations and that the Carrier needs to take corrective action on these violations immediately.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that One Stop Shop has violated the law.
  49 CFR 390.5 provides:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle—

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.]

*   *   *

For-hire motor carrier means a person engaged in the transportation of goods or passengers for compensation.

*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire carrier or a private motor carrier.[ ]

Because both the 2002 International and the 2003 Freightliner trucks had a GVWR of 10,001 pounds or more, they were commercial motor vehicles under this definition.  Because One Stop Shop was hired to transport property, it was a motor carrier under this definition as well.  

Count I:  Violation of 49 CFR § 391.51(a) and (b)(7)—

Failure to Maintain Medical Examination Certificate in Driver Qualification Files
The MHTC asserts One Stop Shop violated 49 CFR § 391.51(a) and § 307.400.1 on June 15, 2010, by failing to maintain a medical examination certificate for Leasure in his driver qualification file.  

Section 307.400.1 provides:

It is unlawful for any person to operate any commercial motor vehicle as defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, either singly or in combination with a trailer, as both vehicles are defined in Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 390.5, unless such vehicles are equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as such regulations have been and may periodically be amended, whether intrastate transportation or interstate transportation.

49 CFR § 391.51(a) provides:

Each motor carrier shall maintain a driver qualification file for each driver it employs.  A driver’s qualification file may be combined with his/her personnel file.  

49 CFR 391.51(b)(7) provides:

(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:

*   *   *

(7) The medical examiner's certificate as required by § 391.43(g) or a legible copy of the certificate. 

One Stop Shop did not maintain Leasure’s driver qualification file as required, and thereby violated 49 CFR § 391.51(a) and (b)(7).  Because One Stop Shop violated these regulations, we conclude the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397, and that One Stop Shop violated § 307.400.1.  

Count II:  Violation of 49 CFR § 395.8—
Failure to Keep Record of Duty Status

The MTHC asserts that One Stop Shop violated 49 CFR § 395.8 and § 307.400.1 on June 15, 2010, by failing to require Leasure to record his duty status using either of the methods prescribed in 49 CFR 395.8(a)(1) or (2).    


49 CFR § 395.8(a) provides:    

Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using the methods prescribed in either paragraphs (a)(1) or (2) of this section.
By failing to keep a record of duty status, One Stop Shop violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) on June 15, 2010.  Because One Stop Shop violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a), we conclude the vehicle was not equipped and operated as required by Parts 390 through 397 and One Stop Shop violated 
§ 307.400.1.
Count III:  Violation of 49 CFR § 396.17—

Failure to Have Vehicles Inspected

The MHTC asserts that One Stop Shop violated 49 CFR § 396.17 and § 307.400.1 on February 17, 2010 and June 15, 2010, by allowing Leasure to drive vehicles that had not been timely inspected.  


Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17 provides:

(a) Every commercial motor vehicle must be inspected as required by this section. The inspection must include, at a minimum, the parts and accessories set forth in appendix G of this subchapter. The term commercial motor vehicle includes each vehicle in a combination vehicle. For example, for a tractor semitrailer, full trailer combination, the tractor, semitrailer, and the full trailer (including the converter dolly if so equipped) must each be inspected.

(b) Except as provided in § 396.23 and this paragraph, motor carriers must inspect or cause to be inspected all motor vehicles 
subject to their control. Intermodal equipment providers must inspect or cause to be inspected intermodal equipment that is interchanged or intended for interchange to motor carriers in intermodal transportation.

(c) A motor carrier must not use a commercial motor vehicle, and an intermodal equipment provider must not tender equipment to a motor carrier for interchange, unless each component identified in appendix G of this subchapter has passed an inspection in accordance with the terms of this section at least once during the preceding 12 months and documentation of such inspection is on the vehicle. The documentation may be:

(1) The inspection report prepared in accordance with § 396.21(a), or 

(2) Other forms of documentation, based on the inspection report (e.g., sticker or decal), which contains the following information: 

(i) The date of inspection; 
(ii) Name and address of the motor carrier, intermodal equipment provider, or other entity where the inspection report is maintained; 
(iii) Information uniquely identifying the vehicle inspected if not clearly marked on the motor vehicle; and 
(iv) A certification that the vehicle has passed an inspection in accordance with § 396.17. 

On February 17, 2010 and June 15, 2010, One Stop Shop allowed Leasure to drive its commercial motor vehicles without them having been inspected in the prior twelve months.  The MHTC asserted no evidence of when (or if) either truck had been inspected before the dates in question, but because One Stop Shop admitted the violations by its agent’s signing the notices of violation detailing them, we conclude One Stop Shop violated Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17, and thereby violated § 307.400.1.

Summary


We conclude One Stop Shop violated state and federal laws.  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on August 18, 2011.


________________________________



MARY E. NELSON


Commissioner

	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2010 unless otherwise noted.  
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